
CITYOFSHOREWOOD COUNCILCHAMBERS
PLANNINGCOMMISSIONMEETING 5755COUNTRYCLUBROAD
TUESDAYSEPTEMBER7, 2021 7:00P.M.  

AGENDA

CALLTOORDER ROLLCALL / (LIAISON) SCHEDULE

MADDY (SEPT) ______  
EGGENBERGER (DEC) _        _  

GAULT (AUG) ______  
RIEDEL (NOV) ______  

HUSKINS (OCT) ______  
COUNCIL LIAISON JOHNSON (JUL-DEC) ______  

1. APPROVAL OFAGENDA

2. APPROVAL OFMINUTES

August3, 2021

3. MATTERS FROM THEFLOOR
Thisportionofthemeetingallowsmembersofthepublictheopportunity tobringupitemsthatare

notontheagenda.  Eachspeakerhasamaximumofthreeminutestopresenttheirtopic.  Multiple
speakersmaynotbringupthesamepoints.  Nodecisionswouldbemadeonthetopicatthe
meetingexceptthattheitemmaybereferredtostaffformoreinformationortheCityCouncil.)  

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS
A) Urban FarmAnimal Ordinance Amendments
B) CUPforafence

Applicant: AlecWalsh
Location: 5660Minnetonka Drive

5. NEWBUSINESS
A) Variance tosideandrearyardsetback

Applicant: Wayne Hartmann
Location: 27460 Maple RidgeLane

6. OTHER BUSINESS

7. REPORTS
A) Council Meeting Report
B) DraftNextMeeting Agenda

8. ADJOURNMENT



CITY OF SHOREWOOD COUNCIL CHAMBERS
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
TUESDAY, AUGUST 3, 2021 7:00P.M.  

MINUTES

CALL TOORDER

ChairMaddycalled themeeting toorderat7:01P.M.  

ROLL CALL

Present: Chair Maddy; Commissioners Eggenberger, Gault (arrivedat7:05p.m.) and
Huskins; Planning Director Darling; Planning Technician Notermann and, Council
Liaison Johnson

Absent: Commissioner Riedel

1. APPROVAL OFAGENDA

Commissioner Huskins notedthattheCouncil Liaisonneeds tobechanged fromCouncilmember
Callies toCouncilmember Johnson.   

Huskins moved, Eggenberger seconded, approving theagenda forAugust 3, 2021, as
amended. Motion passed 3/0.   

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

July 6, 2020

Huskins moved, Eggenberger seconded, approving thePlanning Commission Meeting
Minutes ofJuly 6, 2021, aspresented. Motion passed 3/0.    

Commissioner Gaultarrivedatthemeeting.  

3. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR

AlanYelsey, 26335PeachCircle, stated thathehaslived inShorewood for40yearsandwould
liketotakethisopportunity share twelve brief issuesthatagroupofcitizenshavecomeupwith
thattheyfeelhavegotten outofhandintheCity.    

Commissioner Eggenberger askedifthegroupofcitizens hementioned wasaformalgroupof
citizens.   

Mr. Yelsey stated thatitisaformalgroupthatisintheprocess offorming andiscalledBythe
People andnotedthattherearearound1,200members fromtheCity.    

Commissioner Eggenberger asked iftherewasawaytoseewhothemembers ofthegroupare
orseealistofofficers.   



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
AUGUST 3, 2021
Page2of9

Mr. Yelseystatedthattheydidnotyethaveawaytoseealistofthemembers ortheofficers and
notedthatatthistime, itwillbekeptprivate.  Hestated thattheywillbetotallyopenwiththat
information oncetheycomplete theformation process.   

Commissioner Eggenberger explained thatthereasonhewasaskingwasthathewould liketo
knowwhere thecomments arecoming from.   

Mr. Yelseystated thattheCommission canjustthinkofthecomments coming fromhimrightnow.   
Hestated thathisbackground isasaplanner fortheMetropolitan Council andasaCorporate
Human Resource Planner forHoneywell.  Hestated thatasthe Planning Commission makes
plansfortheCity, hewouldaskthatthey:  1.  Makesuretheyaregetting resident inputthroughout
theentireprocess.  Hestatedthat theCityasnever reached outtohiminhis40yearsasa
resident toaskhimwhatheneeded orwanted inanyreasonable, comprehensive way.  2.  Offer
accessibility forpeoplewithdisabilities andtwo-wayZoomcapabilities tomakeiteasier forthem
toparticipate inmeetings without havingtocometoCityHall.  3. Budget - There iscurrently no
clear, transparent waythathe, asacitizen, canfindouthowtheCityisdoingwithmoneyandsee
whattheintakeoutflow, andbonding.  4.  Communication withresidents ofaclearpictureof
important things inthecommunity.  5.  Pesticides – Water quality isanissueintheCityandthe
Cityisthebiggest polluter andthelargest source ofcontamination ofwaterbecause theyare
putting pesticides inlargequantities intoFreeman Parkandthefields.  6.  Smithtown Ponds –  
Directly relatedtotheStrawberry Laneprojectandnotedthathelovestheideaoftryingtothink
through theentirewestern Shorewood water issues, butthereisahigh-watertablewhich isabig
challenge.  Heexplained thathedoesnotthinktherehasbeenagood, coherent justification for
theproject, norhastherebeenademonstration thattwopondsofthiskindwillactually work.   7.   
SignOrdinance – Hefeelsthatitisanawfulnon-democratic document.  Signsareoneofthe
inherent rightsofresidents ofthiscountry andisprotected bytheConstitution.  Hestated that
citizens shouldhavearighttoanynon-commercial signtheywishtoplaceontheir lawnaslong
asitwon’tcauseaproblem orblockaview.    

Commissioner Eggenberger stated thathevotedinsupportofaten-foot setback inthesign
ordinance because ofthechildren wholiveinhisneighborhood andplaynear thestreet.    

ChairMaddy stated thattheCommission willnotreargue thedetailsofthesignordinance, butif
itcomes backtotheCommission, heinvitedMr. Yelsey tocomebackandjointhediscussion.   
Hestated thathewouldnotliketospend timedefending pastdecisions.    

Mr. Yelseystated thatthereasonChairMaddydoesnotwanttodefend pastdecisions isbecause
hecannot.    

Commissioner Gaultstated thatMr. Yelsey madeafewpointsabout lackofparticipation and
notedthatallofthese itemswereopenforpublicdiscussion atthetimetheywerebeing
considered bytheCommission, viaZoomaswellasinperson.  TheCommission hadnobody
whocameforward, including Mr. Yelsey, toexpress concerns.  Hestated thateveryone inthe
Cityhasaccess totheagenda fortheCommission andCouncil meetings.  Hestated thatthe
Commission hasnotcutanybody off, butwhathashappened isthatpeople havechosen notto
participate.    

Mr. Yelseystated thathefeltitwastheresponsibility oftheCitytobepro-active.  Ifheissitting in
hislivingroom, onhiscomputer, lookingattheCitywebsite, hecannot easilyfindtheagenda and
notedthat theCitydocuments areoften200+ pages long.  Hestated thathewasnotnotifiedof
thechanges forthesignordinance untilabout10daysbeforehandandnotedthatthelanguage
waschanged before itwenttotheCouncil.  



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
AUGUST 3, 2021
Page3of9

Commissioner Huskins stated thatMr. Yelsey claimed thatnon-commercial signage isrestricted
totheperiodoftimejustpriortotheelection andjustafter.  Hestated that isnothisunderstanding
oftheCode.   

Mr. Yelsey stated thatwhatwaspresented totheCouncil wasdifferent thanwhatthePlanning
Commission sawand whatwasproposed intheirmeeting changed between thattimeandthe
Council meeting.    

ChairMaddy thanked Mr. Yelsey forhistimeandstated thattheCommission will lookintothe
itemsthatheraised.  

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS – NONE

5. NEW BUSINESS
A.   Variance

Applicant:  Revision LLC
Location:  28115 Boulder Bridge Drive

Planning Director Darling gaveanoverview oftherequestbyRevision LLCforavariance tothe
rearyardsetback at28115Boulder BridgeDrivetoallowanaddition tobeconstructed about37
feetfromtherearproperty linewhere50feetisrequired.  Theexisting home wasconstructed in
1983andwasconstructed about30feet fromtherearproperty line.  Theapplicants areproposing
toaddasportcourtaddition tothehome.  Staff isrecommending approval subject toacquiring
allnecessary permits priortoconstruction.  

JohnDaley, Revision, LLC, explained thattheyhavebeenworking ontheplansforabout6
months.  Henotedthattheir initialunderstanding wasthattherewasa30-footsetback butwhen
theygotfurther intotheprocess foundthatBoulder Bridgehadaseparate PUDwithasetback of
50feet.  Hestated thatthehouse isunique because itislegalnon-conforming todayandwas
alsolegalnon-conforming backwhenitwasconstructed.  Hestated thatallrecords haveshown,  
thusfar, thattherewasnotavariance issuedforthehome.   

Planning Director Darling stated thatshehasnotbeenabletofindavariance forthehome, but
wasabletofindoneforthescreened porch.    

Mr. Daleyexplained thattheyweretryingtoexpand behind therearofthegaragesoitdoesnot
haveanyexposure tothefrontstreetanddoesnotgoasclosetotheproperty lineasthehouse
doestoday.  Hestated thatthehomeowners haveworkedclosely withtheneighborhood
association whoarealsoinfavoroftherequest.    

ChairMaddy stated thattheCityreceived aletter fromtheLindsey’s, buttheydidnotreference
theassociation. Heaskediftherewasanycorrespondence fromtheBoulder Bridge homeowner’s
association.    

Planning Director Darling stated thattypically theCitydoesnotreceive that typeof
correspondence.    

Mr. Daleystated thatthereisaletter, buthedoesnothaveacopyofitwithhim.  

ChairMaddy suggested thatacopyoftheletterbesentviae-mailtoPlanning Director Darling.      



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
AUGUST 3, 2021
Page4of9

Eggenberger moved, Gault seconded, torecommend approval oftheVariance Request for
28115 Boulder Bridge Drive, subject totheapplicant obtaining allnecessary permits prior
toconstruction.  Motion passed 4/0.  

B. Urban Farm Animal Ordinance Amendment Discussion
Applicant:  City ofShorewood
Location:  City-Wide

Planning Director Darling gaveanoverview ofpastrequest fromaresident ataJune2021City
Council meeting requesting theCityamendtheregulations removing therequired consent ofa
portionoftheneighbors inordertohavechickens ortoconsider addingavariance process.   
Council askedstafftoprovideareviewoftheCityregulations andbackground information on
whatothercitiesallow.  Shestated thatafterthisinformation waspresented, theCouncil asked
stafftodraftordinance amendments whichwerereviewed onJuly26, 2021.  Sheexplained that
theMinnesota Supreme Court recently madeadecision onanunrelated casethatrequires cities
tofollowthesameprocess forordinance amendments oncodes thatarerelatedordependent on
zoning regulations asactualzoning amendments.  So, theCouncil hasreferred thismatter tothe
Planning Commission forreviewandapproval.  Shereviewed theproposed amendments and
notedthatapublichearing willbeheldatthenextCommission meeting.    

Commissioner Eggenberger confirmed withPlanning Director Darling thatthecostforthepermit
wouldbe $50andafterafive-yearperiod wouldbeanother $50tohavethepermit renewed.    

Commissioner Huskins askedformoredetailonthestipulation ofbeing25feetfromtheproperty
lineandaskedifitwouldsupersede thesetback.  

Planning Director Darling stated thatthewaythecurrent ordinance reads isthatithastobekept
inthebuildable yardarea, whichwouldbe10feetfromthesideproperty lines, thenitwillhaveto
bescreened tothesatisfaction oftheneighbors.  Shestatedthatstaff isproposing achange to
addafewmorecriteria relatedtolocation.  Shestated thattherequired setbacks aslistedinthe
Zoning Ordinance wouldstillneedtobemet, butyoualsohavetokeeptheshelter closer tothe
permitholders house thananyoftheadjacent residences andifitiscloserthan25feettoa
property line, therewouldalsohavetobescreening fortheshelterandanyenclosure area they
mayhave.    

ChairMaddy suggested reviewing theproposed amendments sectionbysection.  Hestated that
hisfirstquestion waswhysomeone rentingaproperty couldnotraiseurbanfarmanimals.    

Planning Director Darlingclarified that thisissaying that theowneroftheurbanfarmanimals
must liveinthedwelling ontheproperty, notthattheymustownthedwelling.    

ChairMaddy askediftheword ‘enclosure’ couldbeaddedto705.09b, tohelpclarify things.    

Commissioner Gaultstated that ‘confinement area’ wastakenoutofthenextsection andhewould
liketoseethatleftin.  

Commissioner Eggenberger askedaboutthestatement that saysthefencing shallbeasolid
privacy fence.   

Planning Director Darling stated thatifthereisaboard-on-board fence, thebirdsmaybeableto
getthrough thegap.   



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
AUGUST 3, 2021
Page5of9

Commissioner Eggenberger askedifpeople couldputupchicken wirefencing.    

Planning Director Darlingstated thatthatpeople couldusechicken wirefencing fortheenclosure,  
butthesolidprivacy fencing wouldbeforscreening, nottheenclosure.   

TheCommission discussed screening requirements andwheresolidfencing isallowed inthe
City.   

Planning Director Darling explained thatshewasattempting tofindameasurable standard rather
thanasubjective standard.  

ChairMaddy stated thatpeopleseetheirneighbor’sdogsrunning aroundtheyardandaskedwhy
watching chickens orotherurbanfarmanimalswouldbeanydifferent.    

Commissioner Eggenberger suggested thattherequirement forsolidprivacy fencingberemoved.   

ChairMaddy statedthathewonders iftheCityisholdingontothe1950sversionofthesuburbs
whereeverything looks thesamewiththethought thatyoudonotwanttolookatyourneighbor’s
chicken coopandnotedthathewasn’tsurehowapplicable itisrightnow.    

Commissioner Huskins statedthat fortheneighbor whodoesn’twanttolookitat, itwould impose
aburdenonthemandtheydidn’tbringthesituation onthemselves.    

ChairMaddy stated thatifsomeone putsonanuglyaddition, uglyfurniture ontheirdeck, orhas
anuglydogrunning around theyard, therearenotrepercussions.    Hestated thathedoesn’t
understand whychickens wouldbetreatedsomuchdifferently.  Heaskediftherewasconsensus
thatthecurrent language wastoorestrictive.    

Commissioner Gaultsuggested thatthelanguage saythatanyurbanfarmanimal enclosure must
meetallzoning setback requirements.    

Commissioner Eggenberger stated thatitseems liketheCommission istryingtomake thisthe
sameasputtingupastorage shedandsuggested that therebeadifferent setofrules.    

Commissioner Gaultstated thatthisbecomes moreofanissueinpartsof theCity thathave
smaller lotsizes.    

Planning Director Darling reminded theCommission thatthisitemisjustfordiscussion tonight
andthepublichearing willbeheldatthenextCommission meeting.       

Commissioner Huskins statedthathedoesn’tthinkthatsixanimals willbeabigdeal, but
questions whatwillhappen whensomeone wants tohave7, 8, or9.    

ChairMaddy stated thatisagoodpointbecause ifitislimited to6, hedoesn’tthinktoomuch
damage canbedoneandsuggested thatperhaps thescreening requirements bepulledoutof
theordinance.  

Commissioners GaultandEggenberger stated thattheywouldsupport thatchange.    

ChairMaddy stated thatthereappears tobeconsensus onremoving thescreening requirement
andshould justsaythatitistobelocatedaminimum of25feetfromadjacent properties.  



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
AUGUST 3, 2021
Page6of9

Planning Director Darling explained thatthe25feetwasincluded sothattheycouldeitherhaveit
farther fromtheproperty lineswithoutscreening orscreen itifitwastoberightuptotheproperty
lines.  Shestatedthatifthescreening requirement isremoved, theycantakeoutthe25-foot
setback aswellandjustleaveitasthebuildable area.    

Commissioner Gaultaskedforadefinition ofbuildable area.   

Planning Director Darling stated thatbuildable areameans thatitmeetsallthesetbacks.    

ChairMaddy suggested language thatsays ‘located within thebuildable areaoradequately
screened’, andthenkeepthesamescreening requirement thatwasproposed.    

Commissioner Gaultsuggested adding shelterorenclosure tobelocated within thebuildable
areaoftherearyardwhichmeans thescreening requirement cangoaway.  Hestated thathe
wouldalsoleavetherequirement thatitbecloser totheproperty owners dwelling thanitistothe
neighbors dwelling.    

Councilmember Johnson asked whatwould happenonacorner lot.    

Planning Director Darling stated thattheywouldstillhavetokeepitintherearyardasdefined by
thezoningcode.    

ChairMaddyconfirmed thattheconsensus isforSubd. 2. b. itwilladdshelterandenclosure, kept
inabuildable area, andC.2. remove thewholeparagraph.    

Commissioner Gaultaskedabout theamendments madetoHbecause thatisasignificant
reduction.    

Planning Director Darling stated thattheCityhasalready beenenforcing itasacombination ofa
maximum ofsixandthisisjustclarifying thatthemaximum number ofurban farmanimals issix

Commissioner Eggenberger askediftherewereanyadditional urban farmanimals otherthanthe
sixthatarelistedandgave theexample ofpeacocks.    

Planning Director Darling statedthatasitiswritten theonlyallowed urbanfarmanimals arethe
oneslisted, sopeacocks wouldnotbeallowed.    

Commissioner Gaultnotedthatthereisnotwhere thaturbanfarmanimal isdefined.   

ChairMaddyexplained thatitisdefined butwasnotincluded inthepacket.  

Planning Director Darling readaloud thedefinition forurbanfarmanimals.   

ChairMaddy stated thathehasanargument forincluding goatsasanurbanfarmanimal.    

Planning Director Darling stated thattheyhavenotdiscussed moving goatsfromrural intothe
urbanfarmanimals category.   

ChairMaddy stated thatheknowsSt. Paulallowsgoatsasanurbanfarmanimal.    Hestated
thattheycanleavethislanguage asisandseeifaresident brings itupforapossible change.   
HeaskediftheCommission would liketochange theallowed number tobemorethansix
because, tohim, thatnumbers seems low, especially forchickens.    



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
AUGUST 3, 2021
Page7of9

TheCommission supported leaving theallowed number nottoexceedacombined totalofsix.    

Commissioner Huskins statedthatPlanning Director Darling hadstated thatpeopleareallowed
toselltheireggs, butitemf. makes itappearasthough thatisnotallowed.   

Planning Director Darling stated thattheState lawsupersedes thisdocument, soshecantake
thatoutbecause shedoesnotthink theCitycandoanything aboutsellingeggsonyourproperty.    

Commissioner Huskins suggested thatitberemoved because itcanbeconfusing andmaygive
theneighbors something tocomplain abouteven thoughitisactually allowed.    

Therewasconsensus toremove itemf.    

Planning Director Darling stated thatbeforesheremoves thatitem, shewants todoabitmore
research toensureshehasunderstood theState lawaccurately.  

Commissioner Huskins askedifitem (1) (c) under feescouldberemoved since theCommission
hasrecommended doingawaywiththescreening.    

Commissioner Gault askedifabuilding permitwasrequired fortheshelter.   

Planning Director Darling stated thatabuilding permit isalmostnever required forthiskindof
shelter.    Shenotedthatshewillalsochange thefeerequirement toreflect theCouncil’s
suggestion fora $50feeuponrenewal.    

TheCommission suggested striking1) under (3) (a) andjust statethatthepermitexpires five
years fromthedatethepermit isissued.    

Commissioner Gault statedthathethinkssomething shouldbeincluded thatstatestheurban
farmanimalownerwillberesponsible forthedeathorinjuryofneighboring domestic animals in
theevent thatcarnivores areattracted.    

Planning Director Darling stated thatthenextsteps intheprocess aretonotify thecurrent permit
holders thattherearechanges beingdiscussed andpublish itforapublichearing inSeptember.      

6. OTHER BUSINESS
A.   Comprehensive Plan 2040 Updates

Applicant:  City ofShorewood
Location:  City-Wide

Planning Director Darling stated thatstaffwould liketheCommission tobeginreviewing the
changes thatstaffhasincorporated asdirectedbytheMetropolitan Council.  Shestated thatone
oftheimpactful comments wasthattheCityneeds toallowfor155newhouseholds between
2018and2040byincreasing opportunities todevelop properties at5unitsperacreorgreater.   
Shestated thattheCityalsoneeded toallocate properties withdensities greater than8unitsper
acreinordertoproduce48affordable housing units.  Shestated thatthekeywordhereisthat
theCitymusthavethe ‘opportunity’ available.  Sheexplained that theconsultants have
recommended usingamixeduseclassification whichwouldallowforbothcommercial useand
residential usesnearCubfoodsandtheattached shopping centeraswellasHoliday Gastothe
NewHorizon DayCarearea.  Shestated thattheyhavealsorecommended including thefollowing



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
AUGUST 3, 2021
Page8of9

properties ashighdensity:  23400Smithtown Road; 23425County Road19; and23445 County
Road19.   Shereviewed theothersmallchanges thathavebeenrecommended.    

Commissioner Gaultstatedthat, inhisopinion, someofthesechanges beingmadetochange
properties tohighdensity arejustonpaper, butwillneveractually happen.      

ChairMaddystated thathethinksthat iswhyPlanning Director Darling explained that the
important wordis ‘opportunity’ which means itdoesn’thavetobebuilt, butthepossibility exists.   

Commissioner Gaultstated thathewasunder theimpression thattheMetCouncil expected the
Citytoconstruct these.   

ChairMaddystated thathedoesnotthinkthat iscorrect andthinks itjustthat theCityhastogive
theopportunity forthemandcannot forcethemarket.    

Planning Director Darlingstated thatthenextstepsinthisprocess istospeak totheproperty
owners andletthemknowtheCityisproposing achange withapublichearing totakeplaceon
October5, 2021.  Shestated thatsheissuretheCitycansettheparameters fortheproperty
owners cancontinue using theproperty withtheircurrent structures aslegallynon-conforming.   
Shestated thatstaffwould justliketheCommission tofamiliarize themselves withtheproposed
changes andletstaffknowiftheyhavestrong feelingsaboutanyofthethem.    

ChairMaddy askedwhatkindof ‘teeth’ theMetCouncil hadforacommunity thatismostly built
out, suchasShorewood, thatisratherrestricted ontransportation.  Hestatedthat itdoesn’tmake
alotofsensetoputalotmorepeople inthiscommunity without somesortofnon-auto-oriented
traveloptions.    

Planning Director Darling reiterated thattheCityjustneeds tomaketheopportunity within the
landuseplananddoesneedtochange theComprehensive Plan.      

B. Commission Liaisons forUpcoming Council Meetings

ChairMaddy notedthatCommissioner Riedelwillbeunabletoattend theAugust23, 2021Council
meeting.    

August – Commissioner Gault
September – ChairMaddy
October – Commissioner Huskins
November – Commissioner Riedel
December - Commissioner Eggenberger

A. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR

B. REPORTS

Council Meeting Report

Council Liaison Johnson reported onmattersconsidered andactions takenduringCouncil’sJuly
26, 2021, meeting (asdetailed intheminutes forthatmeeting).  

Draft Next Meeting Agenda



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
AUGUST 3, 2021
Page9of9

Planning Technician Notermann stated thatatthenextmeeting, therewillbeaCUPrequest for
afencealongSmithtown Road, avariance forashed, avariance/Preliminary Plat/special home
occupation application forsomeproperties onRadisson Road, andtheurbanfarmanimals issue.   

C. ADJOURNMENT

Huskins moved, Gault seconded, adjourning thePlanning Commission Meeting ofAugust
3, 2021, at8:53P.M. Motion passed 4/0.  



CITYOF

SHOREWOOD
5755COUNTRYCLUBROAD, SHOREWOOD, MINNESOTA 55331-8927 · 952.960.7900

www.ci.shorewood.mn.us · cityhall@ci.shorewood.mn.us

MEMORANDUM

TO:   Planning Commission

FROM:  Marie Darling, Planning Director

MEETING DATE: September 7, 2021

RE: TextAmendments forUrban Farm Animals

Attached areseveral amendments tothecurrent ordinance related tokeeping urban farmanimals.    

Notice ofthese amendments werepublished intheofficial newspaper atleast10inadvance ofthepublic
hearing.  Mailed notice oftheamendments totheregulations weresent toallpermit holders and thosewho
have indicated interest intheregulations atleast10days inadvance ofthepublic hearing.    

Background

InJune, aresident came toMatters fromtheFloorattheCityCouncil andasked that theCity review and
amend theCity’sregulations regarding therequired consent ofaportion oftheneighbors inorder tohave
chickens ortoaddavariance process.    

TheCouncil asked staff toprovide areview thecity’sregulations andbackground onwhatother cities
allow.    

When theinformation waspresented, Council askedstaff todraft ordinance amendments for their review.   
They reviewed theproposed amendments atameeting onJuly26, 2021.    

TheMinnesota Supreme Court recently madeadecision onanunrelated case thatappears torequire cities
tofollow thesame process forordinance amendments oncodes thatarerelated ordependent onzoning
regulations asactual zoning amendments. Asaresult, theCityCouncil forwarded thepotential
amendments tothePlanning Commission toaskfortheir review andtoholdapublic hearing.    

AttheirAugust 3, 2021 meeting, thePlanning Commission reviewed thedraft ordinance referred tothem
bytheCityCouncil andmade thefollowing suggestions:  

toremove thescreening thatstaffhadpreviously proposed and
toreview statutory language forfarmanimals regarding keeping themforcommercial purposes



Page2

Proposed Ordinance Amendments

Theproposed ordinance amendments:   

1. Remove therequirement that75percent ofneighbors within 150feetmust consent totherequest
andremove therequirement requiring screening totheneighbors’ satisfaction.  

2. Addarequirement that theanimal shelter mustbelocated closer totheanimal owner’shome than to
ahome onanabutting property.  

3. Limit theownership ofurban farmanimals toproperties withsingle-family dwellings.  
4. Require arenewal ofthepermit after fiveyears.  
5. Prohibit culling (slaughtering), except for theowner’sown use (asallowed byMinnesota Statute

28A.15).  
6. Remove regulations thatprohibit keeping urban farmanimals forcommercial purposes.  Any urban

farmanimal owner maysell theeggsorliveanimals, aspermitted bytheMinnesota Constitution.  

Staffalsopropose several housekeeping issues tocorrect code references, clarify regulations, improve
grammar, and thelike.    

Timeframe forpermit renewal:  
Staff recommends fiveyears fortherenewal period forafewreasons:  
1. Fiveyears allows theanimals tomature andformost fowl tostop laying eggs.    
2. Thecostofanurban farmanimal permit is $50anddoglicenses are $10foreachdog, withmultiple

animal licenses at $25initially and $10forrenewals plusindividual doglicenses.  Dogtagsand
multiple doglicenses mustberenewed every year, butnoinspections arerequired.   

3. Thefive-year timeframe would notbeaburden oneither stafforthepermit holder.    

ATTACHMENTS:     
Council memos forJune28andJuly26, 2021
PCMemo forAugust 3, 2021
Current Section 705ofCityCode (Farm andOther Animals)  
Proposed Ordinance



7H
MEETINGTYPE

REGULAR

CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title/Subject:   FarmAnimalRegulations (Chickens)   

Applicant:  CityofShorewood

Meeting Date:   June28, 2021

Prepared By:    Marie Darling, Planning Director

Attachments:  Chapter 705ofCityCode (FarmAndotherAnimals)  

Background:  TheCityCouncil directed stafftoexplore thefollowing options andto
provide information onhowothercities regulate farmanimals:  

1. Doothercities require neighbors toapprove requests forchickens andother
farmanimals?  

2. Doothercitiesallowvariances within theiranimal ordinances forthekeeping
ofanimals?  

Staffandthecityattorney recommend against inserting avariance process within the
animal section ofthecodebecause 1) theprocess iscostlyandtime-consuming for
boththeapplicant andthecityand2) variances should beusedforadimensional relief.  
Othercities’ farmanimal regulations only include thevariance process iftheyare
included inthezoning regulations.    

Staff researched theordinances ofseveral othercities, including Bloomington,  
Chanhassen, Chaska, Deephaven, EdenPrairie, Excelsior, Minneapolis, Minnetonka,  
Minnetrista, Mound, Plymouth, Shakopee, St. PaulandTonka Bay.   

Thefollowing citiesdonotallowchickens:  Excelsior, Mound, andTonka Bay.  For
purposes ofcomparing ordinances, Deephaven andMinnetrista onlyallowchickens on
10acreparcels orwithin theagricultural district.  Asaresult, their regulations arenot
compatible.  

Thefollowing cities require neighbor approval:  St. Paul (7-15chickens), Shorewood

Thefollowing citiesrequire neighbor notice: Chanhassen, St. Paul (1-6chickens)  

Thefollowing citiesdonotnoticeorapproval:  Bloomington, Chaska, EdenPrairie,  
Minneapolis, Minnetonka, Plymouth, Shakopee

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.    



Staffandthecityattorney recommend removing theneighbor approval requirement
fromtheCityCodebecause thebasis fortheneighbor approval couldbesubjective and
capricious. Objective standards aremoreappropriate when reviewing permits.   

Staff requests Council direction onwhether notification ofneighbors should berequired.    

TheCityCouncil maywanttoconsider whenandwhere isitappropriate forchickens to
beallowed.  Should theyonlybeallowed onproperties overacertain size?  Should
therebeadistance requirement between thecoop/hive/hutchandadjacent dwellings?    

Staffalsorecommends theCouncil directacodeamendment thatrequires farmanimal
shelters besituated closer totheanimal owner’sdwelling thantoanyoftheneighboring
dwellings, similar tostandard found inBloomington’sCode.    

FinancialorBudgetConsiderations:  Outside ofpublication andstaff timetodraft the
ordinance amendment, there isnoadditional impact tothebudget related tothis
ordinance amendment.  



9A
MEETINGTYPE

REGULAR

CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title/Subject:   DiscussionRegardingAmendmentsforUrbanFarmAnimals

Applicant:  CityofShorewood

Meeting Date:   July26, 2021

Prepared By:    Marie Darling, Planning Director

Attachments:  Potential Ordinance Amendments forUrban Farm Animals
Chapter 705.09 (FarmAnimals) ofCityCode

Background:  OnJune28, 2021, theCityCouncil reviewed general information onhow
othercitiesandShorewood regulate farmanimals anddirected staff todraft
amendments totheordinance toallowthefollowing changes totheregulations:  

1. Remove therequirement thata75percent ofneighbors within150feetmust
consent totherequest.  

2. Addaregulation that theanimal shelter mustbelocated closer totheanimal
owner’shome thattoahomeonanabutting property.  

3. Limit theownership ofurban farmanimals toproperties withsingle-family
dwellings.  

4. Require arenewal ofthepermit, butnotrequireafee.  
5. Prohibit slaughtering.  

Theattached ordinance amendment reflects alltheabove items. Staffalsoadded a
requirement forscreening because theneighbors willnolongerbeconsulted onthe
appropriate fencing.  Staffproposed requiring screening whentheenclosure islocated
within25feetofaproperty line.    

FinancialorBudgetConsiderations:  Without arenewal fee, theCitywouldbe
subsidizing thecostofprocessing therenewals andconducting theinspections for
animal owners.  

NextSteps:  AttheJune28, 2021meeting, staffmentioned thatduetoarecent
Supreme CourtDecision, theadoption ofanordinance amendment thatreliesonzoning
ordinance regulations mayalsohavetofollow thesameprocess aszoning
amendments.  Because thecasewasonlyrecently decided, theLeague hasnotyethad
timetoputtogether guidance onthistopic.  Toavoidanylegalambiguity withthis
ordinance amendment, staff recommends thattheCityfollow thesamepublichearing
process forthisamendment asazoning ordinance amendment.  Thenextavailable
meeting toholdapublichearing onthistopicwouldbeSeptember 7, 2021.   

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.    



CITYOF

SHOREWOOD
5755COUNTRYCLUBROAD, SHOREWOOD, MINNESOTA 55331-8927 · 952.960.7900

www.ci.shorewood.mn.us · cityhall@ci.shorewood.mn.us

MEMORANDUM

TO:   Planning Commission

FROM:  Marie Darling, Planning Director

MEETING DATE: August 3, 2021

RE: Discussion ofTextAmendments forUrban Farm Animals

Background

InJune, aresident came toMatters fromtheFloor andasked that theCity review andamend theCity’s
regulations regarding therequired consent ofaportion oftheneighbors inorder tohavechickens ortoadd
avariance process.    

TheCouncil asked staff toprovide areview thecity’sregulations andbackground onwhatother cities
allow.    

When theinformation waspresented, Council askedstaff todraft ordinance amendments for their review.   
They reviewed theproposed amendments atameeting onJuly26, 2021.    

TheMinnesota Supreme Court recently madeadecision onanunrelated case thatappears torequire cities
tofollow thesame process forordinance amendments oncodes thatarerelated ordependent onzoning
regulations asactual zoning amendments. Asaresult, theCityCouncil forwarded thepotential
amendments tothePlanning Commission toaskfortheir review andtoholdapublic hearing.    

Inadvance ofthepublic hearing, staff included theamendments onthisagenda fordiscussion purposes.     

Proposed Ordinance Amendments

1. Remove therequirement that75percent ofneighbors within 150 feetmust consent totherequest.  
2. Addaregulation that theanimal shelter mustbelocated closer totheanimal owner’shome thattoa

home onanabutting property.  
3. Limit theownership ofurban farmanimals toproperties withsingle-family dwellings.  
4. Require arenewal ofthepermit after fiveyears.  
5. Prohibit slaughtering.  

Theattached ordinance amendment reflects alltheabove items. Staff alsoadded arequirement for
screening because theneighbors willnolonger beconsulted ontheappropriate fencing.  Staff proposed
requiring screening when theenclosure islocated within 25feetofaproperty line.  Staff recommended
privacy fencing, but thePlanning Commission mayrecommend otherwise.    



Page2

Staffalsopropose several housekeeping issues tocorrect code references, incomplete regulations and
similar.    

Timeframe forpermit renewal:  
Staff recommends fiveyears fortherenewal period forafewreasons:  
1. Fiveyears allows theanimals tomature andformost fowl tostop laying eggs.    
2. Thecostofanurban farmanimal permit is $50anddoglicenses are $10foreachdog, withmultiple

animal licenses at $25initially and $10forrenewals plus individual doglicenses.  Dog tagsand
multiple doglicenses mustberenewed every year, butnoinspections arerequired.   

ATTACHMENTS:     
Council memos forJune28andJuly26, 2021
Current Section 705ofCityCode (Farm andOther Animals)  
Proposed Ordinance



705.09 FARM ANIMALS.  

Subd. 1. Rural farmanimals. Unless otherwise provided for, aperson shallnotkeep, own,  
harbor orotherwise possess arural farm animal within thecity.  

Subd. 2. Urbanfarmanimals. Apersonmayown, keep, harbororotherwise possess urbanfarm
animals within thecityinaccordance with theprovisions ofthissection.  

a. Anurbanfarmanimalmayonlybekeptinthebuildable areaoftherearyardofthe
property, asdefined bytheZoning Code.  

b. Anurban farmanimal that iskeptoutside must beprovided ashelter structure of
appropriate size, thatisaccessible totheanimal atalltimes asprovided in §  
704.06, Subd. 1. ofthischapter. Theshelter structure andconfinement areas shall
beadequately screened tothesatisfaction ofneighboring property owners, as
provided in § 705.09, Subd. 2.j.(2). Screening maybeachieved byfencing or
landscaping, oracombination ofboth.  

c. Theurban farmanimal mustbecontained ontheproperty bytheuseofafenceor
other appropriate containment deviceorstructure.  

d. Roosters arenotallowed.  

e. Anurbanfarmanimalmustnotbekeptonresidentially-zonedproperty ifitisbeing
usedaspartofacommercial purpose, whether ornotthecommercial useoccurs
ontheresidentially-zoned property.  

f. Theground orflooroftheareawhere anurban farmanimal iskeptmustbe
covered withvegetation, concrete or other surface approved by the Planning
Department, sothatitcanbe, andis, sufficiently maintained toadequately dissipate
offensive odors, incompliance with § 704.06, Subd. 2.a. andc. ofthischapter.  

g. Thenumberofchickens, ducks, geese, turkeys, guineahens, orrabbitsshallnot
exceedsix.  

h. Thenumber ofbeehivesshallnotexceed four.  

i. Anypersonhavingmorethantheallowable numberofanimalssetforthin
paragraphs g. and
h. above, atthetimeoftheadoption ofthischapter, shallnot replace animals in
excess ofthose limitations.  

j. Permit issuance; fees.  

1) Nourban farmanimalmaybekeptinthecityuntilapermit todosohasbeen
approved bytheZoning Administrator andissued bytheofficeoftheBuilding



Official. Nopermit shallbegranted until thenecessary feehasbeenpaid, and
until theBuilding Official orstaff representative hasmade aninspection of
theproperty, andhasascertained that thepremises comply withall
requirements ofthischapter. Detailed plansandspecifications, accurate and
drawn toscale, mustbesubmitted withtheapplication, including, butnot
limited to, thefollowing:  

a) Siteplanshowing thelocation andsetbacks ofexisting andproposed
buildings, fences andstructures onthesubject property.  

b) Architectural plans showing floorplans, building elevations and
dimensions.  

c) Landscaping planshowing howtheshelterstructure andconfinement
areaswillbescreened fromadjoining properties.  

2) Theapplicant foranypermitrequired undertheprovisions ofthischaptershall
provide with the application, the written consent of 75% of the owners or
occupants ofprivately orpubliclyownedrealestatewithin150feetoftheouter
boundaries ofthepremises forwhich thepermit isbeing requested, or, inthe
alternative, proof that theapplicant'sproperty linesare150feetormore fromany
structure. Where astreet separates the premises for which the permit is being
requested fromother neighboring property, noconsent isrequired fromtheownersor
occupants ofproperty located ontheopposite sideofthestreet. Where aproperty
within 150feetconsists ofamultiple dwelling, theapplicant needonlyobtain the
written consent oftheowner ormanager, orotherperson incharge ofthebuilding.  

3) Fees.  

a) Thepermit feeandotherfeesandcharges setforthinthischapter shallbe
collected bythecitybefore theissuance ofanypermits, andtheBuilding
Official, orother persons duly authorized toissuethepermit forwhich
thepayment ofafeeisrequired under theprovisions ofthischapter, may
notissueapermit until thefeesshallhavebeenpaid.  

b) TheCityCouncil shall, fromtimetotime, establish afeeschedule by
ordinance.   

Ord. 493, passed 3-12-2012) Penalty, see § 104.01





































CITYOF

SHOREWOOD
5755COUNTRYCLUBROAD, SHOREWOOD, MINNESOTA 55331-8927 · 952.960.7900

www.ci.shorewood.mn.us · cityhall@ci.shorewood.mn.us

MEMORANDUM

TO:   Planning Commission, Mayor andCityCouncil

FROM:   Emma Notermann, Planning Technician

MEETING DATE: September 7, 2021

REQUEST: Variance tosideandrear
yardsetbacks

APPLICANT:  Wayne Hartmann

LOCATION: 27460 Maple Ridge Lane

REVIEW DEADLINE: November 26, 2021

LANDUSECLASSIFICATION:  LowDensity Residential

ZONING:  R-1A/S

FILENUMBER:  21.22

REQUEST:  

Theapplicant requests avariance tothe
setback fromthesideandrearproperty lines
foranaccessory structure that includes a16x
12-footshedwithanadditional 16x10-foot
carport ona24-footby24-footconcrete pad.  
Theaccessory structure isalready constructed andislocated approximately 4feetfromthesideproperty
linewhere 10feet isrequired and16feetfromtherearproperty linewhere 50feet isrequired. The
variance application wassubmitted afterCitystaffwasmadeaware thattheshedunder construction
without permits.  

Noticeofthisapplication andthepublic meeting wasmailed toallproperty owners within500feetofthe
property atleast10dayspriortothemeeting.   

Staffhasreceived several public comments thatareattached tothememo.   



Page2

BACKGROUND

Context: Theexisting homewasconstructed in1974. Thelotwascreated in1959aspartoftheVirginia
Highlands subdivision. Theproperty iszoned R-1AandisintheShoreland District ofLakeVirginia.   

Mostoftheadjacent properties arealldeveloped withsingle-family homes andzoned R-1Aandareinthe
Shoreland District.  

Applicable CodeSections:  
Section 1201.26subd. 5. a. ofthezoning regulations requires asidesetback of30feet totalandaminimum
of10feet.  

Section 1201.10subd. 5. d. (2) ofthezoning regulations requires arearyardsetback ofnotlessthan50
feet.  

Section 1201.03subd. 2. d. ofthezoning regulations require thataccessory buildings andstructures shall
beconstructed within thebuildable areaofthelotsasdefined in § 1201.02ofthischapter except as
provided insubdivision 3cofthissection.  

Section 1201.03subd. 1. f.  ofthezoning regulations states thatalawful nonconforming useofastructure
orparceloflandmaybechanged tolessen thenonconformity ofuse. Onceanonconforming structure or
parceloflandhasbeenchanged, itshallnotthereafter besoaltered toincrease thenonconformity.    

ANALYSIS

Theaccessory structure inquestion requires avariance because theprevious accessory structure was
notlegally non-conforming, asitwasconstructed acrossaproperty lineandwasnotissuedabuilding
permit. Iftheprevious accessory structure hadbeen legally non-conforming, staffwould havebeenable
toadministratively approve thenewaccessory structure ofsimilar orsmaller sizeunder Section 1201.03
subd. 1. f.  ofthezoning regulations.  

Theapplicant’snarrative isattached andindicates thattheaccessory structure hasbeenreconstructed
toaddresses acoupleofissues thattheoldaccessory structure presented. Thenewaccessory structure
padlocation is4feetfromthesideyard line, although thisdoesn’tmeetthe10-footsetback, thenew
location resolves theissueoftheprevious shedencroaching overthelotlineontheneighbor’sproperty
andreduces theamount oftheencroachment intothedrainage andutilityeasement. Theapplicant also
states thatthenewimprovements totheproperty willinclude theinstallation ofadrain/drywell tohelp
withdrainage issues inthenortheast corneroftheproperty.   These improvements would occur inthe
easement andmustalsobereviewed bytheCityEngineer prior toinstallation. Theapplicant did
subsequently state that theywouldnotbemoving forward withthedrain installation.   

Theapplicant’sproperty issituated alongLakeVirginia inawaythat imposes botha75-footsetback to
theOrdinary HighWater Level (OHWL) ofLakeVirginia anda50-footrearyardsetback.   

Theaccessory structure hasbeenconstructed inside thedrainage andutility easement that runsalong
theeastandnorthproperty line. Because construction indrainage andutilityeasements isnot
permitted, theCitywillrequire anencroachment agreement withtheproperty owner. Thisagreement



Page3

would protect theCityagainst costorliability forthestructure anddriveway shouldanyworkneedtobe
completed intheeasement.    

Variance Criteria:  

Section 1201.05subd.3.a. ofthezoning regulations sets forthcriteria fortheconsideration ofvariance
requests. These criteriaareopentointerpretation. Staff reviewed therequest according tothese
criteria asfollows:  

1. Intentofcomprehensive planandzoning ordinance: Theproperty owner would continue tousethe
property forresidential purposes.  Theypropose nousesonthesitethatwould beinconsistent
witheither theintent oftheresidential landuseclassification orthedistrict’sallowed uses.    

2. Practical difficulties: Practical difficulties include three factors, all threeofwhichmustbemet.   
Staff finds thatthepractical difficulties fortheproperty arerelated tothelotconfiguration and
setbacks forbothsideyards, arearyardandtheOHWLofLake Virginia.  

a. Reasonable: Theapplicant hasproposed areasonable residential useontheproperty.    

b. Unique Situation vs. Self-Created:  Thesituation isunique because theunique shapeofthe
property means thatthebuildable areaofthelotissubject totwosideyardsetbacks, arear
yardsetback andasetback totheOHWLofLake Virginia.    

c. Essential Character:  Theproposed addition wouldnotbeoutofcharacter forthe
neighborhood. Thenewshednolongerencroaches overthelotlinebutisinthesame
general location astheprevious shedwas. Thelocation isshielded byheavy treecover.   

3. Economic Considerations: Theapplicant hasnotproposed thevariance solely basedoneconomic
considerations, buttoenhance thefunctionality andusageoftheshedspace andtomove the
shedbackover theapplicant’sproperty line.   

4. Impact onArea: Theproperty owner isnotproposing anything thatwould impair anadequate
supplyoflightandairtoanadjacent property, increase theriskoffire, orincrease theimpacton
adjacent streets. Theshed islocated towards therearofthelotwhere threeproperties intersect.  
Bothneighboring houses areapproximately 100feetawaywithheavy treecover inthearea.   

5. Impact toPublic Welfare, Other LandsorImprovements: Staff findsthat theshedwouldnotbe
detrimental tothepublic welfare asanaccessory structure isatypical residential useinthearea
andissubject totheapproval oftheencroachment agreement toprotect thepublicutility
easement. Theaccessory structure isvisible fromthestreet, butisconstructed inamanner to
match thehouse anddoesnotstand out.     

6. Minimum toAlleviate Practical Difficulty:  Staff findsthevariance request istheminimum
necessary toalleviate thepractical difficulties ontheproperty.  



Page4

FINDINGS/RECOMMENDATION

Staff findsthevariance proposal meets thecriteria above andrecommends approval ofthevariance
whileacknowledging thatthevariance criteria areopentointerpretation. Consequently, thePlanning
Commission could reasonably findotherwise.  

Should thePlanning Commission recommend approval ofthevariance, staff recommends that the
applicant berequired toacquire allnecessary permits andenter intoanencroachment agreement.  

ATTACHMENTS
Location map
Applicants’ narrative andplans
Previous survey andupdated survey withapproximate location
Photographs ofaccessory structure
Correspondence Received



Page5

27460MapleRidgeLaneLocationMap




































	Agenda
	08 03 2021 Meeting Minutes
	4A Text Amednments for Urban Farm Animals
	4B Fence CUP
	5A Accessory Strucuture Variance

